
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER CONTROL DISTRICT / 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL COORDINATION COMMITTEE MEETING 
FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 13,2009 /2:00 P.M. 

Call to Order at 2:00 P.M. 

Roll Call: Clete J. Saunier, P.E., LGWCD District Administrator (Meeting Facilitator), John 
Ryan, LGWCD Secretary-Treasurer, Dr. Irv Rosenbaum, Town Manager, Dr. Bill 
Louda, Town Council Member present. Also Present: Members of the public. 

Invocation / Pledge of Allegiance led by Mr. Saunier. 

It was agreed by all Committee members that the position of Meeting Facilitator 
would alternate between the Town Manager and the District Administrator. 

SUBJECT: AGENDA APPROVAL. Mr. Saunier stated he has an addition to Agenda ltelTI #12, 
a letter from the Professional Firefighters-Paramedics of Palm Beach County, IAFF 
Local 2928, which he received on this date. Mr. Saunier stated he would like to 
present this letter for discussion as part of Agenda Item #12. The Committee 
agreed. There were no other additions, deletions, or substitutions to the Agenda. 

MOTION: Dr. Bill Louda made a motion to approve the Agenda, to include the addition of 
discussion of the aforementioned letter from Professional Firefighters-Paramedics of 
Palm Beach County, IAFF Local 2928 as part of Agenda Item #12. John Ryan 
seconded the motion. 

ACTION: MOTION PASSED 4 TO O. 

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF JANUARY 16,2009 INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
COORDINATION COMMITTEE MEETING. Mr. Saunier asked for approval of 
the minutes from the January 16, 2009 Intergovernmental Coordination Committee 
meeting. 

MOTION: Dr. Irving Rosenbaum made a motion to approve the minutes from the January 16, 
2009 Intergovernmental Coordination Committee meeting. John Ryan seconded the 
motion. 

ACTION: MOTION PASSED 4 TO O. 

SUBJECT: WATER CONSERVATION AND FIRE SUPPRESSION: DISCUSSION. Mr. 
Saunier stated the Town Council approved moving forward to explore alternative 
water sourcing for fire suppression at the February 3,2009 Town Council meeting. 
A meeting has been coordinated to begin the discussion. The meeting is scheduled 
for Thursday, February 19,2009 at 2:00 p.m., to be held at the Loxahatchee Groves 



MOTION: 
ACTION: 

SUBJECT: 

Water Control District. Members of Town Staff, LGWCD Staff, and Palm Beach 
County Fire-Rescue will be present. 

Town Staff prepared a written summary of the last two meeting discussions. The 
written summary was reviewed by the Committee. 

The need for a coordination meeting between the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, the 
District, and Palm Beach County Fire-Rescue to discuss fire suppression alternative 
water sources was discussed by the Committee. The meeting will take place on 
Thursday, February 19,2009 at 2:00 p.m. at the District offices. 

Mr. Ryan asked for confirmation that the purpose of the meeting is to obtain 
sufficient background information for the Town to move forward with a groundwater 
engineering study. Dr. Louda replied in the affirmative. 

Mr. Saunier stated Don Widing, District Vice Chairman, suggested at the District's 
February 9, 2009 regular meeting, that the study consider ISO requirements that 
might reduce homeowner insurance premium costs for residents. 

No motion was necessary. 
By consensus, the Committee agreed that alternative water sourcing for fire 
suppression should be pursued by the town in coordination with Palm Beach 
County Fire-Rescue and the District. 

COORDINATION BETWEEN TOWN AND LGWCD RELATING TO THE . . 
TOWN'S COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: DISCUSSION. Mr. Saunier stated the Town 
Comprehensive Plan will be considered at an Adoption Hearing next week. Mr. 
Lippman confirmed the Adoption Hearing would be held on Tuesday, February 17, 
2009 at 7:00 p.m. Mr. Saunier stated any comments or corrections should be 
submitted to Town Staff prior to the Adoption Hearing. All of the changes that the 
Town Council approves at the Adoption Hearing will be incorporated in the final 
package before it is sent to the Department of Community Affairs. 

It was noted at the January 2, 2009 intergovernmental coordination committee 
meeting, there were corrections and additions to the Town Comprehensive Plan that 
were agreed upon by the Committee. These changes were subsequently approved by 
the Town Council and the Board of Supervisors. 

Mr. Saunier invited comments from the Committee members. 

John Ryan stated he reviewed the District's September 15,2008 letter that included 
several numbered items that the District wanted addressed. Those comments were 

2 



MOTION: 
ACTION: 

addressed by the Intergovernmental Coordination COlnmittee. Mr. Ryan stated that 
he, Mr. Saunier, and Frank Palen (District's Attorney) tried to go through the updated 
draft of the Comprehensive Plan and to comment on items they were concerned 
about. Mr. Ryan stated he also reviewed a few items with Mr. Saunier that appeared 
to be scrivener's errors. Mr. Ryan suggested the Committee review all comments 
at this meeting. The Committee agreed. 

On Page 1-10, Existing Roadway System. On the third line down, remove the word 
"on". 

On Page 2-2, Existing Roadway System described in 2-2. The Committee agreed this 
should be identical with the description in 1-10. 

On Page 3-1, Table 3-1, delete reference to LGWCD as being responsible for 
"Groundwater / Aquifer Recharge". 

On Policy 2.37,2.31, and 2.310 - no changes, but it was noted that development of 
design criteria should be coordinated with the District whenever equestrian trails are 
planned within District rights-of-way. 

On Page 3-1, drainage analysis paragraph. The number 2.63 should be replaced with 
3.0. 

Mr. Ryan noted that items 21-24 from the District's September 15, 2008 letter were 
sufficiently addressed by Calvin-Giordano using alternative wording than what the 
Committee discussed at its January 16, 2009 meeting. 

Mr. Saunier noted the District is currently drafting a letter of support for the Town's 
second Comp Plan submittal to the DCA. The District will continue to be an affected 
person after the Town Council's public hearing on Tuesday (February 17,2009). At 
the conclusion of the public hearing, should all the District's requested changes be 
addressed, the District will provide this letter to the Town Council for inclusion in 
the Town's second submittal to the DCA. 

Dr. Louda reiterated his acknowledgment of the Committee's Comp Plan comments. 
The Committee agreed on all comments. 

Mr. Ryan suggested the District's letter should acknowledge the Town and District 
have held several meetings to discuss these comments and that the Town and District 
have mutually agreed to these revisions in the Comp Plan. The Committee agreed. 

No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

3 



SUBJECT: ROAD AND MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES AND JURISDICTION. Mr. 

MOTION: 
ACTION: 

SUBJECT: 

MOTION: 
ACTION: 

SUBJECT: 

Saunier read the Agenda Memo, prepared by Matthew Lippman (Town Clerk), as 
follows: 

"With the submittal of the Comprehensive Plan, the Loxahatchee Groves Water 
Control District will be providing a letter of support that will be submitted with the 
Comprehensive Plan. This letter will relate to previous objections and concerns that 
were raised in a letter to the Department of Community Affairs in 2008." The 
Committee agreed this agenda item was sufficiently addressed in the Comp Plan 
discussion. 
No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

COORDINATION BETWEEN TOWN AND LGWCD RELATING TO ROAD 
IMPROVEMENTS. Mr. Saunier read the Agenda Memo, prepared by Matthew 
Lippman (Town Clerk), as follows: 

"The Town is holding a public workshop to discuss the MREG Study before it is 
published. After the workshop, Jeff Maxwell and Clete Saunier will be meeting to 
discuss these items and any concerns or coordination that needs to take place. The 
LGWCD is proceeding with the referendums that would allow certain road segments 
to be improved with OGEM." 

Mr. Ryan stated the District will provide copies of the referendum letter and back-up 
documentation to the Town. 

Mr. Saunier noted the Town's Master Road, Equestrian and Greenway Trail Plan 
public workshop will be held on Saturday, February 14, 2009 at 10:00 a.m. at the 
Loxahatchee Groves Elementary School. 

No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

40TH STREET NORTH I NORTH ROAD CANAL: DISCUSSION. Mr. Ryan stated 
Dr. Louda had asked whether all of 40th Street North was included in the non-District 
road mileage that was submitted for purposes of gas tax revenues. Mr. Ryan stated 
they were not included. The actual amount is a little more than 1.4 miles. 

Mr. Saunier stated he would like to discuss this issue with Matthew Lippman and Jeff 
Maxwell in conjunction with the MREG Plan soon after the workshop meeting on 
Saturday, February 14,2009. 

4 



MOTION: 
ACTION: 

SUBJECT: 

Mr. Ryan stated he regularly drives down the North Road Canal maintenance road 
He noted the adjacent landowner's interim concerns were addressed. 

Dr. Louda stated he was not aware that the County provided $40,000.00 offunding 
for the construction of an equestrian trail along the north side (maintenance road side) 
of the North Road Canal right-of-way from E Road to A Road. He asked if this 
money has been reserved by the District for this designated purpose. Mr. Saunier 
replied in the affirmative. Dr. Louda asked whether the equestrian trail would be a 
minimum of 12 feet wide. Mr. Saunier replied in the affirmative. 

Mr. Saunier asked Dr. Rosenbaum to present to the Town Council three possible 
dates for ajoint workshop meeting between the Town and District to discuss the 40th 

Street North Issue. The proposed dates are: Saturday, April 4, Saturday, April 18, 
and Saturday, April 25, 2009. 

Dr. Louda noted 40th Street North used to be on the County's thoroughfare map to 
connect from 140th Avenue North to Royal Palm Beach Boulevard. 

No motion was necessary. 
Dr. Rosenbaum stated he will present the three proposed workshop meeting 
dates of April 4, April 18, and April 25, 2009 to the Town Council for their 
consideration. 

FEDERAL FUNDING SOURCES: DISCUSSION. Town Staff recently met with 
State Representative Abruzzo and has been in contact with United States 
Congressman Rooney's office regarding the latest update in the Federal Stimulus 
Bill. Town Staff also attended a statewide update by FDOT about related funding 
opportunities. Town Staffwill be meeting with the Palm Beach County Metropolitan 
Planning Organization to discuss further details. 

Dr. Rosenbaum stated the funding process for the Stimulus Bill is still unknown. He 
stated the Town and District need to communicate with each other regarding the 
progress of this issue. 

Mr. Saunier stated he has spoken to other water control district managers about the 
Stimulus Bill. The SFWMD may be in the process of coordinating with special 
districts (i.e., flood control districts, etc.) in an effort to identify various federal 
funding sources. Mr. Saunier asked for confirmation whether the Town has 
submitted the District's projects to the League of Cities or other related municipal 
organizations. Dr. Rosenbaum stated the Town will develop a process by which 
these proj ects could be submitted. Mr. Saunier stated he would like to coordinate 

5 



MOTION: 
ACTION: 

SUBJECT: 

these projects with the Town. Dr. Louda stated the Town and District should 
coordinate the proj ects. 

No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

LGWeD COMMUNICATION OF CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS TO 
PUBLIC AND TOWN COUNCIL: DISCUSSION. Mr. Saunier read the Agenda 
Memo, prepared by Matthew Lippman (Town Clerk), as follows: 

"At the February 3, 2009 Town Council meeting, Vice Mayor Marge Herzog 
requested this item be placed on the agenda for the IGC meeting. The Mayor agreed 
that this would be a good topic for discussion. The request is for the District to make 
public record of any verbal and written agreements that impact the landowners of the 
Town. This would put the elected Town Council members in a better position to be 
aware of these agreements should they be confronted or asked." 

Mr. Saunier stated he received a letter from Michael 1. Mayo, President of the 
Professional Firefighters of Palm Beach County, Local Union 2928. Mr. Saunier 
read the letter into the record. 

Mr. Ryan stated the District and Town have spent a lot of time on something that was 
an unfortunate incident. He stated that much of the unpleasantness over this situation 
could have been avoided if Ms. Herzog would have simply noted what appeared to 
her to be suspicious activity; rather than approaching the individual in person. Mr. 
Ryan stated Ms. Herzog received a full explanation of the activity from District Staff 
when she contacted the District office. Mr. Ryan stated Ms. Herzog placed herself 
in a dangerous situation by confronting someone she did not know. She should have 
called the Palm Beach County Sheriffs Office. Mr. Ryan stated landowners should 
either contact the District office or the Sheriff s Office in the event of any suspicious 
activity. Fortunately, the individual Ms. Herzog approached was a legal 
representative of the property owner (Local Union 2928) and not someone who could 
have reacted in a threatening or violent manner to being confronted. 

Mr. Saunier expressed his concern that if the District establishes a policy of 
providing written authorization letters to individuals who conduct business with the 
District, then people would have the misconception that they could approach any 
suspicious individual under the assumption that such individual should be able to 
provide an authority document. The District could potentially become involved in 
litigation as a result of injury or harm to individuals taking matters in their own hands 
instead of calling the police. 

6 



Mr. Ryan stated the Union representative involved in this particular incident had 
previously coordinated with the District. 

MOTION: No motion was necessary. 
ACTION: NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

SUBJECT: CONSUMER FIREWORKS. Mr. Saunier noted there was one item that was 
inadvertently left off the meeting agenda. He stated it is a letter from Town Clerk 
Matthew Lippman regarding a resolution, and asked if this item could be added at 
this time. The Committee agreed. He requested direction from the Committee on 
how to proceed with this issue. The letter states as follows: 

"On behalf of the Town Council, the Town of Loxahatchee Groves is transmitting 
Resolution 2009-003 for your consideration. The Town Council is expressing its 
support for the Florida Legislature to repeal Section 1 0(5) of Chapter 2007 -67, Laws 
of Florida, which enacted a moratorium on the ability of a municipality, county, or 
other unity of local government's right to adopt regulations governing the right to 
purchase, sell, use, or possess consumer fireworks. Weare requesting your support 
on this very important issue." 

Mr. Saunier asked whether the Town Council is requesting a companion resolution, 
letter of support, etc. from the Board of Supervisors. The Town Committee 
members agreed this was the intent of sending this resolution to the District. 

Mr. Ryan asked if the Town has already drafted a resolution, and Dr. Louda replied 
in the affirmative. Dr. Louda stated he will be meeting with Palm Beach County 
Fire-Rescue representatives to discuss this issue. Dr. Louda stated legally, the only 
wayan individual is allowed to use fireworks is in agriculture to chase birds away 
from crops, or to keep birds away from fish farms. 

Dr. Louda stated when an individual purchases fireworks, they are required to sign 
an affidavit stating they will use the fireworks for one or both of the abovementioned 
purposes. Dr. Louda stated the Loxahatchee Groves community should enforce this 
rule. 

MOTION: No motion was necessary. 
ACTION: Mr. Saunier stated he would place this item on the agenda for the next Board 

of Supervisors meeting on March 9, 2009. 

SUBJECT: NEXT COMMITTEE MEETING LOCA:rION, DATE, TIME. The Committee 
scheduled the next IGC meeting for Friday, March 13, 2009 at 2:00 p.m. at the 

7 



MOTION: 
ACTION: 

District office. Mr. Saunier stated he might have a conflict with this date. Mr. Ryan 
noted that his two (2) month service term on the IGC Committee expires at the end 
of February. Mr. Saunier noted the next Board melnber to serve on the IGC 
Committee is Ron Jarriel and he has resigned from the Board to run for a Town 
Council seat. Mr. Jarriel's resignation is effective March 10,2009. Mr. Saunier 
stated the Board of Supervisors will need to appoint another Board member to 
replace Mr. Jarriel at the March 9, 2009 meeting. 

No motion was necessary. 
By consensus, the Committee agreed that today's discussion topics should be 
placed on the March 13, 2009 agenda for further discussion. 

The meeting was adjourned by the Committee at 3:20 p.m. 

John Ryan, LGWCD Secret 

nier, LGWCD District Administrator lli.IRos;nt;aum, Town Manager 

8 


